
 
 
From: John Neumeier <jneumeier@kaukauna.gov> 
Sent: Monday, October 20, 2025 4:28:00 PM 
To: Kayla Nessmann <knessmann@kaukauna.gov>; Tony Penterman <mayor@kaukauna.gov> 
Subject: FW: F&P - Disagreement with staff recommendation 
 
Good Afternoon Finance and Personnel Committee, 
  
I want to formally express my frustration with the 2nd recommended action for F&P item 2f on 
tonight’s agenda: 
  

 
  
I agree with and applaud the direction of HR staff to make the performance management 
system function better for all involved, this is needed. I appreciate that the new system looks to 
be more consistent and more comprehensible for all. I feel the proposed policies and 
background information provided are thorough and they are appreciated. However, that same 
background information provided for the compensation plan discussion at FP 4/3/2024 is one 
main reason for my frustration and concern: 
  



 
  
It is my understanding that this Compensation Plan was approved on/around April 15, 2024. 
Based on this plan, difficult discussions were had with City staff about the elimination of 
longevity pay, a long standing incentive at the city. The promise of an opportunity for merit pay 
approved by the City did soften the blow for many and also showed the City’s direction of 
rewarding not just staying onboard, but recognizing hard work, good ideas, and going above and 
beyond. The system was set-up and funded as an incentive to workers with funds that were 
previously allocated as an incentive to workers; this makes sense to me even though it wasn’t 
an exact 1-1 trade off. Due to the way the merit system was designed, or lack of design, and due 
to the merit incentive committee’s choice not to award the merit pay to anyone, those funds 
were not spent, but that doesn’t mean the incentive wasn’t earned. $16,000 should be returned 
to the employees as an incentive. Examples might include a final longevity pay check, a one-
time incentive/bonus pay across the board, we could find an approved merit payout option as 
promised, or any other ideas that may have more thought involved than my 20 minutes, but it 
should be returned to the employees as an approved incentive. I believe that taking and using 
these funds in a different manner is wrong and, even though it was not intended to be, deceitful 
to employees. I understand the dollar amounts that we are discussing are small in the grand 
scheme, but the proposed action is a big step in the wrong direction for City/employee relations. 
  



Moving forward, if the City chooses to eliminate the merit incentive, and to not return to a 
longevity, or other incentive program to employees in the proposed budget, that is not 
something I would likely endorse, but it is an understandable choice. If the current proposed 
program is approved and merit pay is completely removed as an option, it should be 
communicated clearly to all employees that we have already removed longevity pay, promised - 
then not delivered - merit pay, and we are now removing merit opportunity from discussions at 
least for the time being. That choice that can then be weighed by employees as to what it 
means to them personally. However, the use of money that was previously planned, budgeted, 
approved, and set aside to incentivize workers should not be taken away and used to fund a 
different initiative. 
  
Thank you for any reconsideration of this recommendation for taking of money away from an 
approved employee incentive program.  
  

John W. Neumeier 
Director of Public Works / City Engineer 
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